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BARSHAY SANDERS, PLLC 
100 Garden City Plaza, Suite 500 
Garden City, New York 11530 
Tel: (516) 203-7600 
Fax: (516) 706-5055 
Email: ConsumerRights@BarshaySanders.com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Our File No.: 114615 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

MIAMI-DADE DIVISION 
 

 

Joel Velez, individually and on behalf of all others 
similarly situated, 
  

Plaintiff, 
 

vs. 
 
Wakefield & Associates, Inc., 
 

Defendant. 

 

Docket No:  
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 
Joel Velez, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated (hereinafter referred 

to as “Plaintiff”), by and through the undersigned counsel, complains, states and alleges against 

Wakefield & Associates, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Defendant”), as follows: 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This action seeks to recover for violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices 

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq. (“FDCPA”). 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has federal subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 

and 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d).  

3. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because a substantial part of the 

events or omissions giving rise to the claim occurred in this Judicial District.  

4. At all relevant times, Defendant conducted business within the State of Florida. 
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PARTIES 

5. Plaintiff Joel Velez is an individual who is a citizen of the State of Florida 

residing in Miami-Dade County, Florida.  

6. Plaintiff is a “consumer” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3).    

7. On information and belief, Defendant Wakefield & Associates, Inc., is a Colorado 

Corporation with a principal place of business in Arapahoe County, Colorado. 

8. Defendant is regularly engaged, for profit, in the collection of debts allegedly 

owed by consumers.   

9. Defendant is a “debt collector” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6).  

ALLEGATIONS 

10. Defendant alleges Plaintiff owes a debt (“the Debt”).   

11. The Debt was primarily for personal medical services and is therefore a “debt” as 

defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(5). 

12. Sometime after the incurrence of the Debt, Plaintiff fell behind on payments 

owed.  

13. Thereafter, at an exact time known only to Defendant, the Debt was assigned or 

otherwise transferred to Defendant for collection.  

14. In its efforts to collect the debt, Defendant contacted Plaintiff by letter (“the 

Letter”) dated February 6, 2017. (“Exhibit 1.”)  

15. The Letter was the initial communication Plaintiff received from Defendant. 

16. The Letter is a “communication” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(2).  

FIRST COUNT 
Violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e and 1692g 

Debt Validation  
 

17. Plaintiff repeats and realleges paragraphs 6 and 8 through 16 as if fully restated 

herein.  

18. The Letter sets forth a “Total Due” of $15.85. 

19. The Letter sets forth, “Interest may be accruing on the balance, please call for an 

updated total before sending payment.” 
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20. The Letter fails to provide information that would allow Plaintiff to determine 

what Plaintiff needs to pay to resolve the debt.  

21. The Letter fails to provide information that would allow Plaintiff to determine 

what Plaintiff will need to pay to resolve the debt at any given moment in the future.  

22. The Letter fails to provide information that would allow the least sophisticated 

consumer to determine what he or she will need to pay to resolve the debt at any given moment in 

the future.  

23. The Letter fails to provide information that would allow the least sophisticated 

consumer to determine the amount of interest owed. 

24. For instance, the Letter fails to indicate the applicable interest rate.  

25. For instance, the Letter fails to indicate the date of accrual of interest.  

26. For instance, the Letter fails to indicate the amount of interest during any 

measurable period.  

27. The Letter fails to contain an explanation, understandable by the least 

sophisticated consumer, of any fees and interest that may cause the amount stated to increase. 

28. The Letter fails to state that the creditor will accept payment of the amount set 

forth in full satisfaction of the debt if payment is made by a specified date. 

29. The Letter, because of the aforementioned failures, would render the least 

sophisticated consumer unable to determine what she will need to pay to resolve the debt at any 

given moment in the future.   

30. The Letter, because of the aforementioned failures, would render the least 

sophisticated consumer unable to determine the amount of his or her debt.  

31. The Letter, because of the aforementioned failures, did not convey “the amount of 

the debt” clearly from the perspective of the least sophisticated consumer. 

32. The Letter, because of the aforementioned failures, did not convey “the amount of 

the debt” accurately from the perspective of the least sophisticated consumer. 

33. The Letter, because of the aforementioned failures, did not convey “the amount of 

the debt” without ambiguity from the perspective of the least sophisticated consumer. 

34. The Letter, because of the aforementioned failures, violates 15 U.S.C. § 1692e 

and 15 U.S.C. § 1692g.   

Case 1:18-cv-20453-MGC   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 02/06/2018   Page 3 of 6



 

4 

B
A

R
SH

A
Y

 |
 S

A
N

D
E

R
S 

PL
L

C
 

10
0 

G
A

R
D

E
N

 C
IT

Y
 P

L
A

Z
A

, S
U

IT
E

 5
00

 
G

A
R

D
E

N
 C

IT
Y

, N
E

W
 Y

O
R

K
 1

15
30

 

SECOND COUNT 
Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e 

False or Misleading Representations 
 

35. Plaintiff repeats and realleges paragraphs 6, 8 through 16, 18, and 19 as if fully 

restated herein.  

36. 15 U.S.C. § 1692e prohibits a debt collector from using any false, deceptive, or 

misleading representations or means in connection with the collection of any debt. 

37. A collection letter is deceptive under 15 U.S.C. § 1692e if it can reasonably be 

read by the least sophisticated consumer to have two or more meanings, one of which is 

inaccurate.  

38. A collection letter is also deceptive under 15 U.S.C. § 1692e if it is reasonably 

susceptible to an inaccurate reading by the least sophisticated consumer.   

39. The Letter states “Interest may be accruing on the balance, please call for an 

updated total before sending payment.” 

40. The Letter also states, “Interest $0.00.”  

41. Because of the juxtaposition of these inconsistent statements, the Letter could be 

read to mean that interest is accruing. 

42. Because of the juxtaposition of these inconsistent statements, the Letter could be 

read to mean that interest is not accruing. 

43. Because of the juxtaposition of these inconsistent statements, the least 

sophisticated consumer would be unable to determine the amount of her debt because the 

consumer would not know whether interest is actually accruing or whether the debt was static. 

44. Because of the juxtaposition of these inconsistent statements, the least 

sophisticated consumer would likely be confused as to whether interest is actually accruing or 

whether the debt was static. 

45. Because of the juxtaposition of these inconsistent statements, the least 

sophisticated consumer would likely be uncertain as to whether interest is actually accruing or 

whether the debt was static. 

46. Defendant’s conduct, as described, violates 15 U.S.C. § 1692e. 

 
CLASS ALLEGATIONS 

47. Plaintiff brings this action individually and as a class action on behalf of all 
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persons similarly situated in the State of Florida from whom Defendant attempted to collect a 

consumer debt using a collection letter that contains the same aforementioned contradictory 

statements concerning interest, from one year before the date of this Complaint to the present.  

48. This action seeks a finding that Defendant’s conduct violates the FDCPA, and 

asks that the Court award damages as authorized by 15 U.S.C. § 1692k. 

49. Defendant regularly engages in debt collection. 

50. The Class consists of more than 35 persons from whom Defendant attempted to 

collect delinquent consumer debts using a collection letter that contains the same aforementioned 

contradictory statements concerning interest. 

51. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class.  Common questions of law 

or fact raised by this class action complaint affect all members of the Class and predominate over 

any individual issues. Common relief is therefore sought on behalf of all members of the Class. 

This class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of 

this controversy. 

52. The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the Class would 

create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to the individual members of 

the Class, and a risk that any adjudications with respect to individual members of the Class 

would, as a practical matter, either be dispositive of the interests of other members of the Class 

not party to the adjudication, or substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their 

interests. Defendant has acted in a manner applicable to the Class as a whole such that 

declaratory relief is warranted. 

53. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect and represent the interests of the Class. 

The management of the class action proposed is not extraordinarily difficult, and the factual and 

legal issues raised by this class action complaint will not require extended contact with the 

members of the Class, because Defendant’s conduct was perpetrated on all members of the Class 

and will be established by common proof.  Moreover, Plaintiff has retained counsel experienced 

in actions brought under consumer protection laws. 

 

JURY DEMAND 
 

54. Plaintiff hereby demands a trial of this action by jury. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests judgment as follows: 
 

a. Certify this action as a class action; and 
 
b. Appoint Plaintiff as Class Representative of the Class, and 
Plaintiff’s attorneys as Class Counsel; and 

 
c. Find that Defendant’s actions violate the FDCPA; and 

 
d. Grant damages against Defendant pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k; 
and 

 
e. Grant Plaintiff’s attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k; 
and 

 
f. Grant Plaintiff’s costs; together with 

 
g. Such other relief that the Court determines is just and proper. 

 
 
DATED: February 6, 2018 

BARSHAY SANDERS, PLLC 
 
By: _/s/ Craig B. Sanders ____________ 
Craig B. Sanders, Esq. 
100 Garden City Plaza, Suite 500 
Garden City, New York 11530  
Tel: (516) 203-7600 
Fax: (516) 706-5055 
csanders@barshaysanders.com 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Our File No.: 114615 
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Telephone: 800-864-3870
Fax: 303-537-2901

WAKEFIELD & ASSOCIATES, INC
8:00 am 5:00 pm MT

SZ-ASSOCLATE5POBox 56* 830 E Platte Ave Unit A
Monday Friday

Fort Morgan, CO 80701

ur client(s) referred your past due account(s) to this Agency for collection. If there is some reason why you are unable to make full payment on this

Litstanding balance we ask that you contact our office.

o insure proper credit to your account(s) !please use payment coupon below and make your check payable to Wakefield & Associates, Inc. Interest

'lay be accruing on the balance, please call for updated total before sending payment.
p

V
A

'ou may make your payment online by going to our payment vendor's secure website: wakefieldpaymentsolutions.com. V
AL AMP'

AKAA

(our website LOGON ID is l=21290 and your LOGON PIN is.552 WV

Sincerely,
SCAN HERE

To Make a Payment

Creditor
C.Nditol. Acct. Principal Interest Service Drae Toml Due

WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY PHYSICIANS
$15.85 $0.00 02/2812015 $15.85

This is an attempt to collect a debt and any information obtained will be used for that purpose. This is a communication from a debt collector.

ERSPLEASE SEE REVE SIDE OF THIS NOTICE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Please Detach and Return in the enclosed envelope with your Parlent

PG EZX 58
7 N=sf: :a pay .77y cm= card please er.ter vie i

LIcrrnaticri Ir. me spaces prowded ii^
:....7.;:^

FOR Vare.a:- CO
1 DLD.I---.1-u=.--7---------

I
I

---L :4V--.7"-'--------- 04 il:Ii i •CU n ID

1

Accou n t 111111=4 005

Febn. ary .06, 2017 Amount Due: $15.85

Wakefield & Associates Inc

PO Box 58
Joel A Velez rn P117111
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Unless you, the consumer, notify this collection agency within thirty days after receipt of this notice that you dispute the validity of the debt or any
portion thereof, the debt will be assumed to be valid by this collection agency. If you, the consumer, notify this collection agency in writing within thirty
days after receipt of this notice, that the debt or any portion thereof is disputed, this collection agency will obtain verification of the debt or a copy of a

judgment against you and a copy of such verification or judgment will be mailed to you by this collection agency. Upon your written request within
thirty days after receipt of this notice this collection agency will provide you with the name and address of the original creditor, if different from the
current creditor.

FOR INFORMATION ABOUT THE COLORADO FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT, SEE WWW.COAG.GOV/CAR.

A CONSUMER HAS THE RIGHT TO REQUEST IN WRITING THAT A DEBT COLLECTOR OR COLLECTION AGENCY CEASE FURTHER
COMMUNICATION WITH THE CONSUMER. A WRITTEN REQUEST TO CEASE COMMUNICATION WILL NOT PROHIBIT THE DEBT
COLLECTOR OR COLLECTION AGENCY FROM TAKING ANY OTHER ACTION AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO COLLECT THE DEBT.

Page 2 of 2
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

 

 

Joel Velez, individually and on behalf of all others 

similarly situated 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

Civil Action No.   
Plaintiff(s) 

 

v. 

 

Wakefield & Associates, Inc. 

Defendant(s) 

 

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 
 

To: (Defendant's name and address) 

Wakefield & Associates, Inc. 

10800 E. Bethany Drive , Suite 450 

Aurora, Colorado 80014 

 

A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) – or 

60 days if you are the United States, or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United 

States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) – you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the 

attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or 

motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, whose name and address are:  

BARSHAY SANDERS PLLC 

100 GARDEN CITY PLAZA, SUITE 500 

GARDEN CITY, NY 11530 

 

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in 

the complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court. 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: ______________________ 

CLERK OF COURT 

 

 

________________________________________ 

 Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk 
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